
 
www.staffsmoorlands.gov .uk 

Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Tel: 0345 605 3010 
 

  

 
 

4 October 2022 
 
Dear Councillor, 

 
 The next Meeting of the Council will be held on Wednesday, 12 October 2022 

in Council Chamber - Moorlands House, Leek at 6.30 pm. 
 
 The Agenda for the Meeting is attached at Appendix ‘A’. 

 
 Tea and Coffee will be served in the Churnet Room between 6:00pm and 

6:25pm. 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
M. Trillo 

Executive Director & Monitoring Officer 
 

 

 
 
NOTE 

 
 

Councillors using the Car Park at the rear of the Council Offices are requested to 
indicate on their car that it is being used by a Councillor whenever they use the Car 

Park, otherwise they may be challenged by the Council’s Car Park Attendant. 
 
 

You can view the agenda 

online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



APPENDIX A 

 

Prayers will be offered prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

1. Apologies for absence, if any.  

2. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

3. Urgent items of business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).  

4. Declarations of interest  

 1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
2. Other Interests 

5. Chairman's or Leader's announcements and correspondence, if any.  

6. Receipt of petitions, if any.  

7. To consider and debate any recommendations from the Cabinet, Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels and Committees, if any.  

7 .1 Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Update (Pages 9 - 
16) 

 Recommendation 

 
That the report be noted. 

8. Recommendations from meetings in the interim period prior to the Council Meeting, 

if any.  

9. Notices of Motion in accordance with Procedure Rule No. 8, if any.  

9 .1 The Council's Response to the Cost of Living Crisis  

 Bearing in mind the powers afforded to councils in the Local Government Act 

of 1972 (section 137), this council will commit to a range of urgent actions 
that will support vulnerable people in our community to cope with the 
unprecedented increases in the costs of energy and the serious fall in living 

standards. 

9 .2 Bus Transport - MOTION WITHDRAWN  

 Bus transport across the Staffordshire Moorlands is critical to the economic 
well-being of the district. Rural areas are particularly badly served by public 

transport and recent changes to routes in the South of the Moorlands 
specifically, highlight the need to have early notice of changes, and be part of 
that decision making. The motion moves that Staffordshire Moorlands District 

Council creates an ongoing dialogue between itself and the main bus 
operators in the form of a working group, committee or other body to ensure 

that SMDC is able to influence decision making where relevant to our 
residents. The officers are to reach out to the bus companies and invite them 
to an initial meeting to discuss the state of transport across the district and 

identify any opportunities where the District Council can work to improve 
targeted routes and find solutions to save routes at risk of threat. 

10. To answer questions asked under Procedure Rule No. 10, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 11.3.) 



11. To consider any political group appointments or changes to membership, if any.  

12. To consider, in accordance with Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972, 

requests for a grant of dispensation to Councillors from attending meetings of the 
Council and its constituent bodies due to their present circumstances.  

13. Exclusion of the Press and Public:  

 The Chairman to move:- 
 

“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 

information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in 

Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.” 

14. To consider and debate any recommendations from the Cabinet, Overview and 

Scrutiny Panels and Committees, if any.  

15. To answer questions asked under Procedure Rule No. 10, if any.  

 At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 11.3.) 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 22 JUNE 2022 
 

PRESENT: Councillor T Holmes (Chair)   

 
 Councillors J Aberley, C Atkins, G Bentley, M Bowen, C Brady, 

B Cawley, S Coleman, M Deaville, B Emery, E Fallows, K Flunder, 
M Gledhill, A Hart, N Hawkins, G Heath, I Herdman, K Hoptroff, 
B A Hughes, A Hulme, K J Jackson, L A Malyon, L Page, I Plant, 

H Plimley, J Porter, D Price, T Riley, P Roberts, P Routledge, 
S Scalise, P Taylor, R Ward, P Wood and M Worthington 

 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillors G Bond, J Davies, S Ellis, T Hall, P Jackson, 

B Johnson, J Jones, I Lawson, L Lea, K Mills, T McNicol, 
S E Ralphs MBE, J Redfern, J Salt, D Shaw, L Swindlehurst, 

E Wain, P Wilkinson and N Yates 
 

25 COUNCILLOR HILDA SHELDON MBE 

 

Councillors paid tribute to and observed a minute’s silence in memory of Councillor 

Sheldon. 
 

26 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

26a ANNUAL COUNCIL MEETING - 4 MAY 2022 

 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Minutes of the Annual meeting of the Council held on 4 May 2022 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
26b RECONVENED ANNUAL COUNCIL MEETING 26 MAY 2022 

 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Minutes of the reconvened Annual meeting of the Council held on 26 May 
2022 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

27 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations made. 
 

28 CHAIRMAN'S OR LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE, IF 

ANY. 
 

The Chairman announced that tickets for the upcoming Charity Fashion Show had 
sold out and that his Civic Service would take place on 17 July 2022. Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



 

 

29 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM MEETINGS IN THE INTERIM PERIOD PRIOR TO THE 
COUNCIL MEETING, IF ANY. 

 

29a AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
REPORT 

 

RESOLVED: 

 
That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 be approved. 
 

29b AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the treasury management position as at 31st May 2022 be noted. 

 
30 TO ANSWER QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER PROCEDURE RULE NO. 10, IF ANY. 

 
1. Question to the Leader of the Council received from Councillor Bill Cawley:  

 

“I was wondering given the recent changes to the structures of SMDC whether it was 
time to review the protocols of the relationship between members, the cabinet and 

officers particularly regarding communication. 
 
Some officers are excellent in terms of responding to queries although this is not a 

universal standard throughout the authority. 
 

A similar point can be made about cabinet members where messages are 
unanswered or require re sending. 
 

One example occurred in March where I sent several messages between 1st March 
to 29th March concerning an issue in Leek West even requiring a message to the 

Chief Executive before it could be resolved.” 
 
Response: 

 
“We can’t comment on any unanswered messages from cabinet messages prior to 

the change in leadership at SMDC however we agree about the need to improve the 
communication between all tiers of the council. We are very keen to ensure that 
communication is prompt, concise and aids decision making and council processes 

at all times. The chain of hierarchy within the council’s management team from 
officers through senior management, heads of services, executive director and 

ultimately the chief executive is there to ensure that there is an escalation process 
with an enquiry. If any council officers don’t respond to councillor enquiries then 
please raise this with their immediate superior, and let the relevant portfolio holder 

know too and we will ensure that the enquiry is chased.” 
 

We have recognised that this has been a problem historically and have all been 
frustrated by it and I hope that you are finding the new cabinet team responsive and 
open to communication via email, phone or any other medium of communication as 

it’s been a top priority for us as a new team to make sure that we are easier to do 
business with and support all members of this council.” 

 
Page 6



 

In response to supplementary questions the Leader of the Council stated that all 

written requests would be answered, that issues could also be raised at group leader 
meetings and that councillors should also reply to officers. 

 
 
2. Question received from Councillor Gary Bentley: 

 
“Can the relevant Cabinet member ask the County Council to look at the process 

they have with the contractors who repair the roads, as at the moment a lot of money 
and time is being spent inappropriately by paying for sets of traffic lights and then 
only doing one pot hole, then coming back and repeating the whole process for one 

more, instead of completing that area, It's poor management and something the 
County Council needs to seriously look at.” 
 
Response: 
 

“Staffordshire Moorlands District Council has no control over the process that 
Staffordshire County Council’s contractors use when repairing roads. This enquiry is 

best directed to one of the county councillors for the area as it’s not something that 
we at Staffordshire Moorlands District Council can change.“ 
 

In response to supplementary questions the Leader of the Council reittereated that 
enquires should be made with county councillors and that the district council was not 

able to assist further. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 6.58 pm 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



  

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Audit & Accounts Committee 

 
16 September 2022 

 

 
TITLE: 

 
Treasury Management Update 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Cllr Worthington – Portfolio holder for 

Finance 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 

Emily Bennetts – Principal Finance Officer 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

Non-specific 

 
Appendices Attached – Appendix A – Treasury Management Update Report 
to 31st August 2022 

 
1. Reason for the Report 

 
1.1. The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s 

Treasury Management performance in 2022/23 in compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice. 
 

2. Recommendation 

 
2.1. That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 31st 

August 2022. 
 

3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1. This report is delivered in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Treasury Management, 
which recommends that members be updated on treasury management 
activities regularly (annual, mid-year and quarterly reports).  

 
3.2. This report comprises the following: 
 

 The latest interest rate forecast; 

 The current investment portfolio and investment income projected for the 

year; 

 The capital loan (service investment – housing); 

 Projected borrowing requirements to support the capital programme with 
associated borrowing costs for the year; and 

 Compliance against prudential and treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2022/23. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7.1



  

3.3. The main headlines are: 
 

 The Bank of England base rate increased from 0.75% to 1.00% in May 

2022; to 1.25% in June; and again to 1.75% in August. 
 

 Due to the subsequent increases in investment interest rates, a surplus of 

£166,000 is forecast against the investment income interest budget.  
 

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £21.9million spread across eight 
separate institutions as at 31st August 2022. 

 

 The capital loan (service investment – housing) is earning £307,000 
interest during the year. Borrowing costs of £214,350 to support this are 

included in the borrowing costs forecast outturn.  
 

 The Council’s average external debt is forecast to be £10.6million at an 
average annual borrowing rate of 1.80%. 

 

 The borrowing costs budget is forecast to be on target pending external 
borrowing decisions. 

 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 
4.1. An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 

effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient 
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the Council’s main 

priorities. 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1. This report sets out the Treasury Management position for Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council for 2022/23 to date and the projected outturn. As 
such it is a statement of fact and there are no options. 
 

Martin Owen 
Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services)) 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

 Contact details 

 
‘Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2022/23’ (Audit & Accounts 
Committee February 2022) 

 Keith Pointon 
Head of Finance 
keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 
Emily Bennetts 
Principal Finance Officer 
emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 10



  

Appendix A 
    
    

    
    

 

 
 

 

Treasury Management Update  
31st August 2022 

 

 
1. Introduction  
 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 
 

3. Investment Activity & Performance 
 

4. Capital loan (service investment – housing) 

 
5. Borrowing Position 

 
6. Prudential Indicators  

Page 11



  

1. Introduction  

 
1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 

investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 

and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”. 
 

1.2. This report is delivered in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Treasury Management, 
which recommends that members be updated on treasury management 

activities regularly (annual, mid-year and quarterly reports).  
 

1.3. The Audit & Accounts Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising 

the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual 
treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury 

management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Accounts Committee are 
reported to full Council. 

 

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2022/23 was 
approved by Council on 23rd February 2022. This report details treasury 

management performance up to the 31st August 2022 and projects forward for 
the remainder of the financial year. 

 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), most recently 

provided their latest base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast 
on 9th August: 
 

% 
Sep-
22 

Dec-
22 

Mar-
23 

Jun-
23 

Sep-
23 

Dec-
23 

Mar-
24 

Jun-
24 

Sep-
24 

Dec-
24 

Mar-
25 

Jun-
25 

Sep-
25 

Bank Rate 2.25 2.50 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.50 2.50 2.25 2.25 2.25 2.25 2.25 2.00 

5yr PWLB 
rate 

2.80 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.00 3.00 2.90 2.90 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.70 2.70 

10r PWLB 
rate 

3.00 3.20 3.30 3.30 3.20 3.10 3.10 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.90 2.90 2.80 

 
2.2. The Bank of England base rate has increased several times in quick succession 

throughout the year so far: to 1.00% on 5th May 2022 (from 0.75% previously); 

then again to 1.25% on 16th June; and to 1.75% on 4th August. The medium 
term forecast from Link shows continuing rises throughout 2022 and into 2023, 

peaking at 2.75%, with a reduction back to 2.00% by September 2025. The 
forecast is being constantly reviewed by Link during the year due to the extreme 
volatility in the current climate with so many outside influences impacting 

decisions of the Monetary Policy Committee in setting interest rates. 
 

2.3. The Council’s investment income budget was set against a much more modest 
forecast with base rate only reaching 0.75% by the end of 2022/23, therefore it 
is likely there will be significant surpluses achieved against the budget.   

 

Page 12



  

2.4. Forecast PWLB rates are also greater than were anticipated at budget setting 
and the Local Authority market will be impacted by all these factors plus the 
levels of liquidity in the market which may be returning to more normal trends as 

the levels of grant cash flowing through Councils from central government to 
businesses and residents potentially reduce. 
 

3. Investment Activity & Performance 

 

3.1. The Council has budgeted to receive £79,390 in investment income in 2022/23, 
based on the modest interest rate rise forecast as described above. Following 

the quick pace of the Bank of England base rate rises and the consequent 
improved investment opportunities, a surplus of c.£166,000 is forecast against 
the budget.  

 
3.2. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 

institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria as detailed in the 
Treasury Management Strategy for the year; and investment priorities of 
Security of Capital, Liquidity and Yield (SLY). The Council’s investment portfolio 

at 31st August totalled £21,938,000: 
 

Counterparty 
Country 

of 
Domicile 

Amount 
Interest rate 

at end of 
period 

Maturity 
period 

Link 
counterparty 

limit 

Standard Chartered UK £4,500,000 1.43-2.32% 
179 to 184 

days 
6 months 

Santander UK £4,500,000 1.01-1.13% 
95-180 days 
(on notice) 

6 months 

Money Market 
Funds 

UK £2,950,000 c.1.70% 
instant 
access 

12 months 

Handelsbanken UK £2,500,000 1.05% 
instant 
access 

12 months 

Lloyds Bank 
Certificate of 
Deposit 

UK £2,000,000 1.99-2.18% 
122-183 

days 
6 months 

NatWest Bank UK £1,988,000 0.10% 
instant 
access 

12 months 

Barclays UK £1,500,000 1.75-1.80% 65-95 days 6 months 

NatWest Bank 
Certificate of 
Deposit 

UK £1,000,000 1.30% 184 days 12 months 

Nationwide Building 
Society 

UK £1,000,000 1.63% 153 days 6 months 

Total   £21,938,000     
  

ESG proportion of 
portfolio 

27.35% £6,000,000       

Barclays 

Linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing Programme which covers ‘a variety 
of thematic projects including energy efficiency, renewable energy, green 
transport, sustainable food, agriculture and forestry, waste management and 
greenhouse gas emission reduction’. 

Page 13



  

Standard Chartered 

Standard Chartered operate this product under their 'Green and Sustainable 
Product Framework', which includes 'No poverty; zero hunger; good health and 
well-being; quality education; gender equality; clean water and sanitation; 
affordable and clean energy; decent work and economic growth; industry, 
innovation and infrastructure; reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and 
communities; responsible consumption and production; climate action; life below 
water; life on land; peace, justice and strong institutions; partnerships for the 
goals'. 

 

3.3. Average investment performance from this activity is shown in the table: 
 

 Investment return 
Q1  
Apr-Jun 

Est. Total 
Apr-Aug 

>364 days - - 

<364 days 0.83% 1.87% 

instant access 0.64% 1.01% 

Total 0.76% 1.58% 

Bank of England base rate at 
start of period 

0.75% 0.75% 

Bank of England base rate at 
end of period 

1.25% 1.75% 

 

4. Capital loan (Service investment – Housing) 

 
4.1. There is a capital loan (service investment – housing) of £10million to Your 

Housing Limited to support the maintenance of and provision of affordable 
housing within the Staffordshire Moorlands District. The loan has a maturity of 

10 years (due February 2032). Interest is chargeable at 3.07% (including a 
0.80% risk premium), therefore £307,000 is receivable in the year. This is a 
small shortfall of £1,000 against the budget. Borrowing costs of £214,350 to 

support this are included in the borrowing costs forecast outturn below. 
 

5. Borrowing Position 
 

5.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 
Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  

Therefore, the Council establishes ‘affordable borrowing limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement. 

 
5.2. The Council’s external borrowing at the start of the year was £12.6million. 

£1.5million local authority borrowing has matured in May and £1.5m in July. A 
further £2million is due to mature in October. The current forecast includes new 
borrowing of £2.5million mid-year to support the general fund underlying 

borrowing need. 
 

5.3. This and any refinancing will be kept under review during the year as the capital 

Page 14



  

programme is carried out, alongside views about cash flow and interest rate 
changes. 

 

5.4. Average borrowing during the year is anticipated to be £10.6million with interest 
at 1.80%. Overall borrowing costs are currently forecast to be on target against 

the borrowing cost budget of £407,310, however this is subject to change 
depending on when external borrowing takes place and the interest rate at the 
time. 

 
5.5. The ‘operational boundary’ (£28,408,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£29,908,000) 

indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing to fund the capital 
programme, plus any short-term liquidity requirements. They were set through the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement to account for the general fund 

borrowing requirement; an allowance for borrowing to cover short-term liquidity; 
and funding of the Capital loan (service investment – housing). The current level 

of borrowing is well within prudential limits. 
 

5.6. The maturity profile of the loans is considered when undertaking external 

borrowing to ensure maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not 
exposed to a substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest 

rates could be high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans. 
 

 
 

5.7. The treasury team, along with Link, monitors opportunities to reschedule debt, i.e. 
reorganise existing debt in such a way as to amend the debt repayments, reduce 
the principal sum borrowed, alter the degree of volatility of debt or vary the 

interest payable, in order to manage risk and achieve overall financial benefit to 
the Council taking account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on 

early redemption compared to the potential interest savings. No debt 
rescheduling has taken place during the year. 

 

6. Prudential Indicators 

 

6.1. All treasury management operations have been conducted in full compliance with 
the Council’s Treasury Management Practices and within the treasury 

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

£3,000,000

£3,500,000

£4,000,000

£4,500,000

£5,000,000

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years 6 - 10 years

Maturity Profile 

Page 15



  

management and prudential indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2022/23. The Executive Director and Chief Finance Officer reports that 
no difficulties are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with these 

indictors. 

Page 16


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of the previous meeting
	7.1 Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Update
	Appendix A


